
DISABILITIES ISSUES COMMITTEE 
MINUTES OF MEETING 
MARCH 25, 2009 
 
In these minutes:  Disabled Students Cultural Center (DSCC) Update, Disabilities 
Services (DS) Update, Disability Statement on Syllabi, Disability Curricula] 
 
[These minutes reflect discussion and debate at a meeting of a committee of the 
University of Minnesota Senate or Twin Cities Assembly; none of the comments, 
conclusions or actions reported in these minutes represent the views of, nor are they 
binding on, the Senate or Assembly, the Administration or the Board of Regents.] 
 
PRESENT:  Alex Lubet, chair, Carol Rachac, Joanie Tool, Donna Johnson, Peggy Mann 
Rinehart, Tammy Berberi, Dale Branton, Patrick McNamara, Julia Robinson, Rachel 
Garaghty, Miriam Krause, Emily Smith 
 
REGRETS:  Amy Hewitt, Maria Gini, Victoria Nelson 
 
ABSENT:  James Gambucci 
 
OTHERS ATTENDING:  Robert Juarez, Luka Krmpotich 
 
I).  Professor Lubet called the meeting to order and welcomed all those present. 
 
II).  Professor Lubet called on Rachel Garaghty to provide a Disabled Students Cultural 
Center (DSCC) update.  Ms. Garaghty reported that the DSCC and La Raza Student 
Cultural Center will host Auti Angel, a singer, dancer, and actress with a disability.  Ms. 
Angel will give a talk about her experiences as a woman with a disability followed by a 
wheelchair dance performance.  Then, she will lead an all-abilities dance workshop that 
everyone can participate in. The event will take place on March 31st from 6:00 – 8:00 
p.m. in the Great Hall of Coffman Memorial Union.  This is a free event.   
 
Ms. Garaghty noted that Joani Werner from the Social Security Administration will be 
the guest speaker at the DSCC’s April 3rd Lunch and Learn.  Ms. Werner will provide 
information about the Work Incentive Planning Assistance (WIPA) project. 
 
Mr. Krmpotich reported that the DSCC will host Eric Rosenthal, J.D., executive director, 
Mental Disability Rights International (http://www.mdri.org/) on April 17th.  
 
Mr. Krmpotich also announced that the DSCC will host a blind/low vision event on April 
15th.  The purpose of this meeting is to have a discussion about what is working on 
campus and what is not in terms of accessibility for blind/low vision people, e.g., 
signage. 
 
Professor Lubet congratulated Rachel Garaghty on being accepted into the Master of 
Public Affairs program at the Hubert H. Humphrey Institute of Public Affairs.  He also 



announced that she was a recipient of the 2009 President’s Student Leadership and 
Service Award. 
 
A member asked Ms. Garaghty whether the DSCC had any plans to conduct an 
informational picket outside of Scott Hall in light of the fact that this is an inaccessible 
building.  Ms. Garaghty stated that nothing definitive has been planned at this time, but 
she would be sure to let the committee know. 
 
Rachel Garaghty announced that the DSCC will hold elections on April 3rd.  
Approximately ½ of DSCC’s board members will be graduating this spring, and, 
therefore, it will be very important to recruit new students to serve on the board.  To be a 
DSCC board member a student must be registered for at least 6 credits, in good standing 
with the University, and have an interest in disabilities.  Professor Lubet added that there 
are also openings on the Disabilities Issues Committee, and encouraged members to refer 
anyone who is interested in serving to the Senate’s website where they can fill out an 
application to serve - http://www1.umn.edu/usenate/conc/commdescription.html. 
 
III).  Professor Lubet welcomed Donna Johnson, the new Disability Services (DS) 
director, to today’s meeting.  The committee gave Ms. Johnson a round of applause.  Ms. 
Johnson went on to briefly provide the committee with some background information on 
her work experience.  She began by noting that she has worked for the University for 17 
years.  Previously, stated Ms. Johnson, she worked as the assistant director of research 
and training in DS for 10 years.  From there, she noted that she worked for the Institute 
on Community Integration for 7 years where she held the position of associate director of 
the National Center on Secondary Education and Transition.  Also, Ms. Johnson added 
that she used to be the advisor for the DSCC. 
 
Ms. Johnson stated that she has been in her current position for 3 months.  She thanked 
Peggy Mann-Rinehart for providing her with excellent training as she gets up to speed. 
 
Ms. Johnson noted that she is currently working with Colleen Frey, disability services 
coordinator, University of Minnesota Morris, to conduct disability training for faculty on 
the Morris campus.  This training will likely take place in August, but has yet to be 
finalized. 
 
Ms. Johnson reported that she did a site visit to the University of Arizona where Sue 
Kroeger, the former director of DS, now works.  The University of Arizona has a 
disabilities studies initiative, noted Ms. Johnson, which she was very interested in 
learning about. 
 
A member asked Ms. Johnson her short and long term goals for DS.  Ms. Johnson stated 
that the office will be doing strategic planning.  To this end, Ms. Johnson stated that she 
has been conducting listening groups with each of the units, Administration, Access 
Programs, Student Services, and UReturn.  From these listening groups Ms. Johnson 
stated that she is gathering information about what staff in each of the units thinks DS’s 
priorities should be.  A priority that has come across loud and clear in these groups is for 



DS to have a coordinated outreach effort.  In addition, other priorities that have been 
voiced include making sure that processes and procedures are working effectively, taking 
a more active role in making sure that DS is involved in cutting edge research and 
training, and exploring possibilities for NIH and NSF grants. 
 
Peggy Mann-Rinehart reported that the Technology Enhanced Learning (TEL) Council 
provides strategic leadership in the area of academic technology at the University of 
Minnesota.  With that said, DS has become acquainted with the University’s newest 
technology tools.  The TEL Council has been very thoughtful in understanding what 
accessibility means.  For example, a task force has been created to specifically look at the 
accessibility of iTunes U.  In addition, the Computer Accommodations Program, a joint 
DS and the OIT Digital Media Center endeavor, has formed a strong bond for the purpose 
of communicating how to make learning materials accessible to students.  There goal is 
to have a new website available by fall 2009 that will have information about making pdf 
accessible, what technology/software the University supports, etc. 
 
Professor Lubet asked Ms. Mann-Rinehart if there have been any discussions about the 
value of distance learning.  Absolutely, stated Ms. Mann-Rinehart.  She explained that 
the Digital Campus initiative is a strategic effort to make e-learning efficient, user-
friendly, high quality, and financially viable for the University of Minnesota system - 
http://digitalcampus.umn.edu/. 
 
A member asked Ms. Johnson if the University of Arizona plans to offer an 
undergraduate or graduate disabilities studies program.  Ms. Johnson noted that UA is 
planning to offer a graduate disabilities studies program. 
 
A member stated that the DSCC is currently hosting two student support groups that are 
disability specific, an ADHD group and Active Minds.  The DSCC would be interested in 
working with DS to offer more support groups with an outreach aim, especially for 
students with invisible disabilities.  Ms. Johnson agreed that this would be a great 
opportunity for collaboration between DS and the DSCC. 
 
Has DS explored collaborating with the Center for Teaching and Learning (CTL) asked a 
member?  Ms. Johnson stated that she has not had an opportunity yet to reconnect with 
CTL, but she intends to do so, particularly related to outreach to faculty to help them 
understand how best to use universal design for learning and enhancing access. 
 
A member stated being happy that Ms. Johnson is the new director of DS.  Another 
member asked whether she would be regularly attending the Disabilities Issues 
Committee meetings.  Ms. Johnson stated that she is scheduled to attend these meetings. 
 
The comment was made that accessibility as it relates to technology is very important, 
and the fact that DS is pursuing cutting edge technology for this purpose is wonderful.  
Ms. Mann-Rinehart stated that it is an enormous task to keep up with technology, and, 
while the University does not mandate the types of software faculty can use, DS will 
work to make sure faculty have the resources they need to understand which technology 



is accessibility.  Ms. Johnson emphasized the importance of going beyond talking about 
accessibility and making accessibility resources available to faculty. 
 
IV).  Professor Lubet called on Professor Branton to provide an update on the 
committee’s ongoing discussions about having a universal welcoming disability 
statement on all syllabi.  Professor Branton noted that the committee discovered that 
getting such a statement on a syllabus has proven more complex than originally thought.  
This is not only an issue of disability, noted Professor Branton, but of diversity.  The goal 
is to create a general welcoming statement for students with disabilities on all syllabi. 
 
Professor Lubet reported that he has asked Kris Lockhart, associate vice president and 
chief of staff, Office of Equity and Diversity, and other key stakeholders to meet with the 
subcommittee that has been formed to look at this issue.  He noted that the goal is to take 
the syllabus issue into a larger arena in order to make faculty and students aware of their 
rights, etc. 
 
On a semi-related noted, Ms. Mann-Rinehart stated that from a document conversion 
perspective, and a student perspective, it would be wonderful to have all syllabi in 
electronic format.  If all syllabi were in an electronic format, a significant amount of 
progress would be made as it relates to accessibility for students.  In Professor Lubet’s 
opinion, having all syllabi in electronic format would likely not meet with as much 
resistance as having a universal welcoming statement on all syllabi. 
 
Professor Branton asked Ms. Mann-Rinehart what she means by “electronic format.”  
Preferably, noted Ms. Mann-Rinehart, syllabi would be in rich-text format in a Word 
document.  Second and third best options respectively would be a Word document, or an 
accessible pdf file.  
 
Professor Branton suspects that an issue with electronic syllabi has to do with copyright.  
Ms. Mann-Rinehart noted that the Library is involved in the conversations that are taking 
place as it relates to issues around copyright, people with disabilities, and electronic 
formats.  While this is a complicated issue, it is definitely on the radar at the University. 
 
Another issue, noted Professor Lubet, has to do with electronic textbooks.  Ms. Mann-
Rinehart stated that higher education institutions are working with textbook publishers to 
get textbooks in alternative formats.  Naturally, there is a significant amount of resistance 
on the part of many publishers to do this. 
 
In terms of electronic syllabi, Professor Lubet suggested using the argument that an 
electronic syllabi requirement would save paper, which the University encourages. 
 
A member stated that while involving the Office of Equity and Diversity (OED) around 
these issues is useful, it would also be important to garner the support of other Senate 
committees.  Once there is support for these issues, a resolution for action can be brought 
to the Senate.  The committee brainstormed groups whose endorsement they should seek,  



e.g., Social Concerns, Senate Committee on Educational Policy (SCEP), Equity, Access 
& Diversity (EAD). 
 
Professor Branton stated that it is important to understand that the committee has talked 
about several separate issues today - electronic formats, faculty and students’ rights, a 
universal welcoming disability statement on syllabi. 
 
V).  Professor Lubet introduced the final agenda item, disability curricula.  A member 
stated that OED is interested in this issue too. 
 
Professor Lubet reported that the Center for German and European Studies (CGES) is a 
joint venture of the University of Minnesota-Twin Cities and the University of 
Wisconsin-Madison.  CGES supports interdisciplinary research, teaching, outreach, and 
education in areas related to Germany and the New Europe.  Faculty and graduate 
students at both universities also work together in funded research collaboratives that 
culminate in new interdisciplinary graduate seminars.  Professor Lubet announced that he 
will be team teaching a course with Dr. Andrew Azzopardi from the University of Malta 
through this program.  Dr. Azzopardi has expertise in the area of inclusive education.  
 
Professor Lubet highlighted other programs with grant money at the University for 
people who are interested in disability curricular or other related initiatives: 

• The Children, Youth, and Family Consortium - http://www.cyfc.umn.edu/. 
• Center for Urban and Regional Affairs (CURA) - http://www.cura.umn.edu/. 

Another member noted that in January every year the Law School puts out a request for 
proposal for faculty and graduate students who are interested in receiving grant money 
for the purpose of conducting research on the social, ethical and legal implications of 
health and life sciences.   
 
A member asked whether anyone has heard if there is any stimulus money available 
through NSF or NIH for this type of research.  Ms. Mann-Rinehart stated that there is 
stimulus money, and noted that the Office of the Vice President for Research website has 
up-to-date information concerning the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
(Stimulus Bill) for U researchers - http://www.research.umn.edu/stimulus.html.   
 
VI).  Professor Lubet thanked members for their participation in today’s meeting.  
Hearing no further business, Professor Lubet adjourned the meeting. 
 
        Renee Dempsey 
        University Senate 
 
 
 
 
 
 


